

# REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

**Project:** 

Wide Area Network - WAN

(RFP - No. LodiUSD-2019-82)

Prepared: October 22, 2019

# Table of Contents

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) SUMMARY 3
SCOPE AND SPECIFICATIONS OF REQUESTED SERVICES
LOCATION FOR PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES
COST BREAKDOWN AND LABELING OF PROPOSAL
EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD 4
SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 4
PROPOSAL SUBMISSION
QUESTIONS RELATED TO THE RFP 6
EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
LIMITATION ON BID CONSIDERATION
QUOTE SEPARATELY
ALL COSTS INCLUDED
TAXES AND INSURANCE
ERROR IN PROPOSAL
WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL
EVIDENCE OF RESPONSIBILITY
ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF PROPOSALS
THE CONTRACT
PREVAILING LAW7
BRANDS
SAMPLES
FEDERAL OR STATE REGULATIONS
PATENT RIGHTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND TRADEMARKS
INSPECTION OF ITEMS FURNISHED
INABILITY TO PERFORM
WARRANTY-PRODUCT
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT
AMENDMENT OF RFP
APPENDIX A
APPENDIX B

# **REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) SUMMARY**

The Lodi Unified School District (LodiUSD) is soliciting proposals from vendors who can provide a High Speed Wide Area Network solution with sufficient bandwidth to meet the ever growing bandwidth needs of Lodi Unified School District. This RFP provides the requirements and evaluative criteria and requests a detailed response from all prospective vendors, including pricing and service descriptions, in a specified format.

### SCOPE AND SPECIFICATIONS OF REQUESTED SERVICES

The Scope of the Services requested by this Request for Proposals ("RFP") and the Specifications for the requested Services are set forth in Appendix A to this RFP.

# LOCATION FOR PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES

The location(s) ("Site(s)") where the Services described in Appendix A.

### COST BREAKDOWN AND LABELING OF PROPOSAL

The Cost Breakdown, Price Summary and Labeling of Proposal and the Specifications for this request is set forth in Appendix B of this RFP.

#### Special Conditions:

- 1. Prices to remain firm through LodiUSD approval, execution, and duration of the proposed contract of installation. In the event of a price decrease for service or from the manufacturer obtained by the Vendor after the RFP/Bid Closing Date, said decrease shall be passed on to Lodi Unified School District and documented with a new price sheet sent to Jim Luebker in the Technology Services Department of LodiUSD, after the RFP/Bid Closing Date but at least seven (7) calendar days before the RFP/Bid Selection Date.
- 2. Any prospective Vendor, who contacts any Lodi Unified School District Board Member during the RFP process, will be disqualified from consideration for the RFP award.
- 3. The Board of Education reserves the right to reject any and all bids/proposals, or any or all items of any bid/proposal.
- 4. Vendor must be able to provide complete implementation and professional services for the duration of the project.
- The services request in this RFP will be included under the District's eRate submission and the District qualifies for California Teleconnect Fund (CTF), and therefore, the service provider will be responsible for Service Provider Invoice (SPI) billing and submission to CTF.

# **EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD**

Any award to be made pursuant to this RFP will be based upon the proposal with appropriate consideration given to operational, technical, cost, and management requirements. Evaluation of offers will be based upon the Vendor's responsiveness to the RFP and the total price quoted for all items covered by the RFP.

Proposals that meet all mandatory requirements will be evaluated and ranked based on the following elements:

- 1. Cost of Vendor's proposal. Eligible Services (35%)
- 2. The extent to which Vendor's proposed solution fulfills Lodi Unified School District's stated requirements as set forth in this RFP. **Solution Meets District Needs** (25%)
- 3. An assessment of the Vendor's ability to reliability deliver the indicated service in accordance with the specifications set forth in this RFP. **Reliability of Service** (20%)
- 4. The Vendor's stability, experiences, and record of past performance in delivering such services. **Prior Experience** (5%)
- 5. Cost of Vendor's proposal. Ineligible Services (15%)

### SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

Event	Date
1. RFP Distribution to Vendors	Tuesday, October 22, 2019
2. Site Visits – Week of	Monday, November 4, 2019
3. Vendor Questions Due	Monday, November 11, 2019
4. Response to Vendors	Thursday, November 14, 2019
5. Proposal Due Date	Monday, December 16, 2019
6. Target Date for Review of Proposals	Thursday, December 19, 2019
7. Final Vendor Selection Discussion(s)Week of	Monday, December 23, 2019
8. Board Approval	January 2020

 <sup>\*</sup> Site Visits - Please notify, Jim Luebker at <u>jluebker@lodiusd.net</u> by Friday, November 1, 2019 at 3:30 p.m. if you would like to attend. He will provide the exact meeting locations and times.

#### **SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS & INFORMATION TO VENDORS**

- 1. Any Vendor who submits a proposal to this RFP acknowledges the validity of the Vendor and the irrevocability of the proposal/offer for ninety (90) days after RFP closing date.
- LodiUSD reserves the option to terminate service, without penalty and full expectation of refund of any and all proceeds paid prior to date of termination of contract or services for balance of services not rendered, if the District is dissatisfied with the service.
- 3. Each Vendor warrants that such facilities and services will maintain the performance criteria stated above at all times during the continuation of the Agreement.
- 4. Each Vendor warrants that it had good title to all elements of the facilities and services and has the legal right to contract with LodiUSD for the installation and use of such facilities and services.
- 5. The selected Vendor shall indemnify LodiUSD and its trustees and employees against any claims or threat of claims brought by any third party alleging infringement of any proprietary rights.

### **PROPOSAL SUBMISSION**

Proposals must be submitted in by person, by first class mail, or by courier, and received no later than **Monday, December 16, 2019 at 3:30 P.M. (PDT)** to the Technology Services Department at the following address:

#### Lodi Unified School District

Attn: Jim Luebker – Technology Services Department 1305 E. Vine Street Lodi, CA 95240

**NOTE:** Proposals received after the deadline, **Monday, December 16, 2019 at 3:30 P.M.** (**PDT**) will not be accepted for consideration. It is the sole responsibility of the Vendor to ensure that the proposal is received in proper time.

All restrictions on the use of data contained within a proposal and all confidential information must be clearly designated as "Proprietary and Confidential Information." Designation of information as such will protect the information from disclosure only to the extent allowed by law, and information so designated will be handled in accordance with the California Public Records Act and other applicable law.

To the extent permitted by law, the contents of proposals shall be confidential until such times as competitive or bargaining reasons no longer require nondisclosure, which shall in no event be later than the time of the RFP/Bid Selection. At that time, all proposals will be available for review in accordance with the California Public Records Act and other applicable law.

### SIGNATURE

The proposal must be signed in the name of the Vendor and must bear the signature in longhand of the person or persons duly authorized to sign the proposal. In the case a proposal is submitted by a corporation, a duly authorized officer or agent thereof must sign it in the name of such corporation.

### ADDITIONAL ITEMS REQUIRED

- 1. Vendor shall furnish complete specifications and rates for all services requested. Additional pricing schedules detailing items listed on the proposal shall be attached to the proposal form.
- 2. The Proposal must be labeled and provide any additional information as set forth in Appendix A to this RFP.
- 3. Each prospective Vendor must submit one (1) bound/binder copy with sealed cover with RFP LodiUSD WAN proposal clearly written on the package and one (1) digital copy (CD or thumb drive) of its bid in response to the RFP by due date (listed above).

- 4. Each Vendor must provide two (2) signed and dated copies of the Vendor's multi-year Service Agreement at the time the bid is submitted.
- 5. Each proposal must contain costs for taxes and shipping as separate items.
- 6. Prices must be held firm for the duration of the installation of complete project and/or until the end of resulting contract.
- 7. Each Vendor who submits a quote for the posted equipment MUST use the posted information in the quote.
- 8. If the quote is not filled out completely, including the full part numbers, quantities, tax, and shipping, the quote may be considered non-responsive.

# QUESTIONS RELATED TO THE RFP

Any Request for Information ("RFI") must be made in writing and sent via e-mail to the contact identified below. Please reference "**RFP - No. LodiUSD-2019-82**" in the email subject line. Replies will posted on district website for all vendors to review at www.lodiusd.net/rfps.

#### **CONTACT INFORMAITON**

Any questions concerning technical requirements must be directed to:

Name	Jim Luebker, Network and Systems Supervisor
Email	jluebker@lodiusd.net

#### \*\*Last day to submit questions will be Monday, November 11, 2019 at 4 pm (PDT).

### **EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS**

Vendors shall thoroughly examine and be familiar with the Specifications. The failure or omission of any Vendor to receive or examine any contract documents, forms, instruments, addenda or other documents or to visit the site and acquaint himself with conditions there existing shall in no way relieve any Vendor from obligations with respect to his proposal or the contract. The submission of a proposal shall be taken as Prime Facie evidence of compliance with this section.

### LIMITATION ON BID CONSIDERATION

No proposal will be accepted from, or contract awarded to, any party or Vendor in arrears to the Lodi Unified School District, or who is a defaulter as surety, contractor or otherwise.

### QUOTE SEPARATELY

Quote on each item separately. Prices should be stated based on quantities/units specified on the proposal form. Detail all service costs. Must show discounts separately, if applicable.

### ALL COSTS INCLUDED

All costs must be included in the Vendor's proposal. The Vendor shall deliver, install, and complete an integrated system, which may include use of LodiUSD owned and installed existing equipment.

### TAXES AND INSURANCE

All insurance that may be required shall be included in all bid response quotations. LodiUSD is not exempt from California State sales and use taxes. LodiUSD is exempt from paying Federal Excise Taxes. California sales tax shall be included in the bid response quotations as a separate line item.

# **ERROR IN PROPOSAL**

Any claim by Vendor of error in his proposal must be made before proposals are opened, or the claim shall be deemed waived. Any Vendor may withdraw his proposal at any time between the hour of proposal submittal and the hour of proposal opening and, having done so, no Vendor will be permitted to resubmit a proposal.

# WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL

Any Vendor may withdraw their proposal by written request, or by email prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of proposals. All proposals received by LodiUSD shall remain subject to the acceptance for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after the date of the proposal opening.

## **EVIDENCE OF RESPONSIBILITY**

Upon the request of LodiUSD, a Vendor whose proposal is under consideration for the award of the Contract shall submit promptly to LodiUSD satisfactory evidence showing the Vendor's financial resources, their experience and organization available for the performance of the contract.

# ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF PROPOSALS

The Board of Trustees reserves the right to reject any and all proposal, or any or all items of any proposal, or waive any irregularity of any proposal. No proposal may be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days without written approval of the District.

# THE CONTRACT

The Vendor to whom the award is made shall be required to enter into a written contract with LodiUSD. These bid specifications and the Vendor's proposal will be attached to, and become a part of, the final contract documents.

### PREVAILING LAW

In the event of any conflicts or ambiguities between these specifications and state or federal laws, regulations or rules, then the latter shall prevail.

The Vendor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the California Labor Code, Division 3, Part 7, Chapter 1, Articles 1-5, including the payment of the general prevailing wage rages for public works projects of more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000). Copies of the prevailing wage rate of per diem wages are available from the District's Purchasing Department.

The Vendor and each subcontractor must be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations, pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5.

The Services are subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

The Vendor and each subcontractor must submit the records specified in Labor Code section 1776 directly to the Labor Commissioner in accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4(a)(3). 00039939.1 3

The Vendor must post a notice on the Work site that contains the language required by 8 Cal. Code. Reg. Section 16451(d) in accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4(a)(2).

The Vendor is required to secure payment of compensation to his/her employees in accordance with the provisions of California Labor Code section 3700.

# BRANDS

When a particular brand or brand and number are named in connection with any item, it is named as a standard of quality and utility only. A Vendor may submit a bid to furnish an item other than that named, but the item offered by the Vendor must state in the Bid Form the brand with its number, if any, which they will furnish. LodiUSD shall be the sole judge of whether an offered item is the equal of the named item. If the Vendor fails to write in the brand and number of the item to be furnished, it is understood the Vendor will furnish the item named by LodiUSD as the standard of quality and utility.

# SAMPLES

Where the Vendor quotes on a brand named as a standard of the quality and utility desired, a sample of the item will not be required unless specifically requested. If the bid submitted is on any other brand or make than that so named, a sample thereof must be furnished, if requested, or the bid on the item will not be considered.

The sample submitted shall be the exact item the Vendor proposes to furnish. Samples of items, when requested, must be furnished free of expense to LodiUSD.

# FEDERAL OR STATE REGULATIONS

The Vendor's proposal and any contract entered into are subject to all applicable statutes of the United States or of the State and all applicable regulations and orders of the Federal or State governments now in effect or which shall be in effect during the period of such contract. ASSIGNMENT PROHIBITED No contract awarded under this proposal shall be assigned without the approval of the Lodi Unified School District Board. Any attempted assignment in violation of the provision shall be voidable at the option of the Board.

# PATENT RIGHTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND TRADEMARKS

The Vendor shall save, keep, bear harmless, and fully indemnify LodiUSD and any of its officers or agents from all damages, or claims for damages, costs, or expenses in law or equity that may at any time arise or be set up for any infringement of the patent rights, copyrights, or trademarks of any person in consequence of the use by LodiUSD, or by any of its officers or agents of items to be supplied by the Vendor.

### **INSPECTION OF ITEMS FURNISHED**

All items furnished shall be subject to inspection and rejection by LodiUSD for defects or noncompliance with the specifications. The cost of inspection on deliveries or offers for delivery which do not meet specifications may be deducted from the contract price.

### **INABILITY TO PERFORM**

In the event that Vendor is prevented from making delivery or otherwise performing on-time as specified in the contract by fire, flood, earthquake, labor or transportation problems, war, acts of government, or any other similar cause commonly known as an act of God, which is not the fault of the Vendor, the Vendor shall not be required to deliver or perform, subject to the following requirements:

The Vendor shall send written notice to LodiUSD of the Vendor's inability to perform in accordance with the contract. The notice shall contain all facts which show the condition which prevents performance. The Vendor shall send such notice as soon as possible but in no event later than the fifth (5th) day following the date of issuance of a purchase order by LodiUSD or no later than the date specified in the contract for delivery or other performance, whichever is applicable.

a. LodiUSD may cancel the contract or purchase order, entirely or in part.

b. The Vendor shall not make any delivery or otherwise attempt to perform under the contract except on the basis of issuance by LodiUSD of a new purchase order or other written instruction.

# WARRANTY-PRODUCT

Seller warrants that all articles furnished shall be free from all defects of material and workmanship, that all articles shall be fit and sufficient for the purposes intended, and shall save, keep, bear harmless and fully indemnify LodiUSD and any of its officers, employees or agents from all damages, or claims for damages, costs or expenses in law or equity that may at any time arise from Buyers normal use.

# EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

Vendor, in submitting their proposal certifies that they are an Equal Opportunity Employer, and certifies that they are in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the State Fair Employment Practice Act, and all other applicable Federal and State laws and regulations relating to equal opportunity employment, including Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965. Vendor must adhere to applicable Prevailing Wage laws and regulations. Details can be found at: <a href="http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/pwd/">http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/pwd/</a>.

### AMENDMENT OF RFP

The District reserves the right to amend this RFP at any time. Amendments will be done formally by providing a written amendment to all potential Vendors known to have received a copy of the RFP. The District shall determine in its sole and absolute discretion if the amendment will require additional time required for a Vendor to prepare a proposal. If so, the District will change the due date deadline and notify all known potential Vendors in writing of the revised deadline due date. All amendments and question responses will be posted on the District web site at: www.lodiusd.net/rfps.

# **APPENDIX A**

to REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS for LODI UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

# Wide Area Network – WAN (No. LodiUSD-2019-82)

#### SCOPE AND SPECIFICATIONS

#### A. SERVICES

The Lodi Unified School District ('LodiUSD" or "District") is seeking proposals from qualified Vendors interested in submitting a bid to provide high speed Wide Area Network services to support full Internet Protocol (IP) services/ports and advanced services, including, but not limited to, H.323 audio and video conferencing, large (100 MB+) file transfers, web-based audio and video streaming, Voice over IP (VoIP), and full support for both IPSec and SSL VPN traffic/services providing complete network convergence throughout the infrastructure.

All equipment, transmission methods, and systems must be "industry-standard." Industrystandard is defined as the most current version of relative standard(s) set by an American National Standards Institute (ANSI) or International Organization for Standardization (ISO)accredited Standards Developing Organization (SDO), such as the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE), Telecommunications Industry Association (TIA), or Electronic Industries Alliance (EIA).

The Vendor must provide Lodi Unified School District with a solution that provides:

- Lodi Unified School District's a High Speed Wide Area Network solution with a Fiber solution.
- Each school site with a dedicated throughput of no less than 1Gbps per site.
- Each route with an individually assigned unique VLAN.
- Lodi Unified School District WAN with a private layer 2 network (customer VLAN) that will encapsulate Lodi Unified School District dynamically assigned VLANs.
- Lodi Unified School District anticipates the term for this service will be a multi-year contract.

#### B. WALK-THROUGH

There will be one optional walk-through for this project. This is NOT mandatory.

Optional walk-through will be the week of Monday, November 4, 2019. Please notify Jim Luebker at <u>jluebker@lodiusd.net</u> if you would like to attend. He will provide you with the exact meeting locations and times.

#### C. SCOPE AND SPECIFICATIONS

All vendors must respond to each and every feature and identify whether they comply or do not comply and identify any and all exceptions. Format of the proposals must follow the format provided below. Incomplete submissions may be subject to disqualification.

#### D. CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

The District intends to use the Service Provider's supplied Service Agreement to formalize any contractual relationship that results from this Request for Proposal. However, the Service Provider's supplied Service Agreement must include all the provisions mentioned in this RFP for the Service Provider's proposal to be considered responsive.

#### E. SERVICES and SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

#### Location/Minimum Speed:

			Min.
	Site	Address	Speed
1	District Office (1 <sup>st</sup> Gateway)	1305 E. Vine Street , Lodi CA 95240	10 Gbps
2	District Office (2 <sup>nd</sup> Gateway)	1305 E. Vine Street , Lodi CA 95240	10 Gbps
3	Ansel Adams Elementary	9275 Glacier Point Drive , Stockton CA 95212	1 Gbps
4	Bear Creek High School	10555 Thornton Road , Stockton CA 95209	2 Gbps
5	Christa McAuliffe Middle School	3880 Iron Canyon Rd. , Stockton CA 95209	1 Gbps
6	Clairmont Elementary	8282 Lemans Ave., Stockton CA 95210	1 Gbps
7	Elkhorn School	10505 N. Davis Rd. , Stockton CA 95209	1 Gbps
8	Henderson Comm Day School	13451 N. Extension Rd. , Lodi CA 95242	1 Gbps
9	Heritage Primary Elementary	509 E. Eden St. , Lodi 95240	1 Gbps
10	Houston MS	4600 Acampo Road , Acampo CA 95220	1 Gbps
11	Julia Morgan Elementary	3777 A.G. Spanos Blvd , Stockton CA 95209	1 Gbps
12	Lakewood Elementary	1100 N. Ham Ln. , Lodi CA 95242	1 Gbps
13	Liberty High School	660 W. Walnut Street , Lodi CA 95240	1 Gbps
14	Lodi High School	3 S. Pacific Avenue , Lodi CA 95242	2 Gbps
15	Lodi Middle School	945 S. Ham Lane , CA 95242	1 Gbps
16	Lois Borchardt Elementary	375 Culbertson Dr. , Lodi CA 95240	1 Gbps
17	Manlio Silva Elementary	6250 Scott Creek Dr. , Stockton CA 95219	1 Gbps
18	Millswood Middle School	233 N. Mills Avenue , Lodi CA 95242	1 Gbps
19	Nichols Elementary	1301 S. Crescent Ave. , Lodi CA 95240	1 Gbps
20	Parklane Elementary	8405 Tam O'Shanter Dr. , Stockton CA 95210	1 Gbps
21	Plaza Robles High School	9434 Thornton Road , Stockton CA 95209	1 Gbps
22	Reese Elementary	1800 W. Elm Street , Lodi CA 95242	1 Gbps
23	Ronald McNair High School	9550 Ronald E. McNair Way, Stockton CA 95210	2 Gbps
24	Tokay High School	1111 Century Blvd. , Lodi CA 95240	2 Gbps
25	Vinewood Elementary	1600 W. Tokay St. , Lodi CA 95242	1 Gbps
26	Wagner Holt Elementary	8778 Brattle Pl., Stockton CA 95209	1 Gbps
27	Westwood Elementary	9444 Caywood Dr., Stockton CA 95210	1 Gbps

#### 1. Basic Features

**Required Features:** 

- a. Full duplex, fiber hand-off at all locations; sites above 1 Gbps shall have a 10 Gbps capable port.
- b. For sites calling for 2 Gbps should be scalable up to 10 Gbps w/o hardware change.
- c. At least 2 4 gateways at centralized location/datacenter/D.O to service up to 40Gbps.

#### F. SYSTEM MONITORING, USAGE REPORTING, AND DIAGNOSTICS

Required Features: Provide scalable system monitoring reports Questions

- 1. What information is included in your system monitoring reports?
- 2. What information is included in your usage reports?

#### G. SYSTEM RELIABILTY AND AVAILABILTY

Required Features:

- 1. What is your regular maintenance schedule?
- 2. How are emergency maintenance notifications made?

#### H. TRAINING

Required Features:

1. For every product application proposed, provide a detailed description of the training the Vendor will provide to LodiUSD network and system administrators.

#### I. IMPLEMENTATION

1. Project Management

Required Features:

- a. Vendor shall assign a Project Manager to this installation to work with assigned District project manager to ensure project schedule stays on track and on-time
- b. Vendor is required to supply a complete description of the key activities and responsibilities required for the installation of the proposed system
- c. A master project schedule must be included, along with a work responsibility matrix, identifying the tasks the Vendor will perform and the tasks the District is expected to perform to successfully implement the new system
- d. Provide a plan ensuring internal and external communications are maintained through the transition process
- 2. Installation Requirements

Required Features:

- a. Vendor will be required to work with District to coordinate and support the ordering of all services related to this new installation
- b. If needed, vendors should include a price list of required equipment. The District reserves the right to seek its own pricing for equipment that meets or exceeds the specifications of the Vendor.
- 3. Facility Requirements

Required Features:

- a. Space provide the physical dimensions of any proposed equipment and/or the rack space required to house all the equipment
- b. Power all electrical power requirements, including any special conditioning or grounding requirements
- 4. System Documentation Requirements
- Required Features:
  - a. Provide any administrative and training manuals, online, CD's, etc.
  - b. Provide any configuration documentation on overall system.

#### J. SCHEDULE FOR IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE

Lodi Unified School District requires the Vendor to submit a proposed Schedule for Implementation Timeline with any proposal response(s). The timeline should include:

- a. The resources to be dedicated to the project,
- b. All costs associated with the project,
- c. Detailed timeline of actions with a completion target date for the Vendor and for the Lodi USD TS project team,
- d. Outline the expectations the Vendor team would have of Lodi USD and the information or task
- e. Lodi USD is to provide Vendor and the date any information or task would be required,
- f. Training should be provided to the District technology staff as scheduled by the District,
- g. Planning, design, conversion, and development should begin on as directed by the District, and Implementation will be at the location(s) set forth above. Implementation schedule calls for all sites to be completed by July 1, 2020. Vendor must have appropriate resources to do this in the time specified and can adjust implementation timeline according to needs of the District.

#### K. DOCUMENTATION

Vendor shall submit to the Lodi USD Information Technology Services Department the following documents within thirty (30) days of installation. These documents need to be in electronic format as well as bounded/binder paper copy:

- a. Full technical specifications and as-built documentation, and network diagrams
- b. Other related documentation to the project

# **APPENDIX B**

to REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS for LODI UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

# Wide Area Network – WAN (No. LodiUSD-2019-82)

#### **COST BREAKDOWN AND LABELING OF PROPOSALS**

#### A. SEPARATE COST BREAKDOWN

Each Vendor must identify and separate any costs that are associated with discount entities and services as identified in the scope of work herein. Original cost must also be present.

#### **B. REQUIRED INFORMATION**

Each proposal shall provide the following information in the order listed below:

#### **1.** COVER LETTER – Stating:

- a. The validity of the Vendor and irrevocable proposal/offer being valid for ninety (90) days after RFP closing date;
- That work will be completed on or before the District's required completion date (if work is to be completed prior to District's requirement, it must state so in the letter); and
- c. Other appropriate items.

The proposal must bear the signature of a person duly authorized to sign the proposal on behalf of the Vendor, and reference this RFP and accept its terms and conditions or clearly and conspicuously indicate any exceptions.

#### 2. TABLE OF CONTENTS

- **3. DESCRIPTION OF VENDOR -** This section should provide a brief description of the Vendor and statement of interest and qualifications for providing the requested equipment and services, include information regarding the size, location, nature of work performed, and years in business, and approach that will be used in meeting the needs of the District. The Vendor should list and describe the Vendor's professional relationships involving the District for the last five (5) years, together with a statement explaining why such relationships do not constitute a conflict of interest relative to perform the proposed service.
- 4. PERSONNEL Vendor will provide resume(s) or profiles of the individual(s) who will be assigned to provide the requested services, including their qualifications and recent related experience providing similar projects and/or services. The Vendor should state the size of the Vendor and the number/nature of the staff to be employed in this engagement on a full-time and on a part-time basis. An affirmative statement should be included that the Vendor and all assigned key professional staff are currently and properly trained, certified or licensed to appropriately perform the services.
- 5. CAPACITY & METHODOLOGY This section should address the ability of the Vendor to undertake and accomplish the required scope of work for which it is requesting consideration and demonstrate the qualifications, competence and capacity of the Vendor.

Any individual Vendor submitting a proposal must be able to provide evidence that the individual or Vendor and its personnel carrying out the responsibilities have expertise and experiences in all areas identified in this RFP.

Before awarding any contract, the District reserves the right to require the Vendor to submit additional evidence of qualifications, as it may deem appropriate. This evidence may concern financial, technical, and other qualifications as well as relevant experience and skills of the Vendor.

- **6. PAST PERFORMANCE** Vendor will provide descriptions of past performances of similar service and related experience (K-12). In addition, the Vendor shall provide information on the circumstances and status of any disciplinary action taken or pending against the Vendor during the past three (3) years with state regulatory bodies or professional organizations. The Vendor will list the most relevant and significant engagements performed in the last five (5) years that are similar to the size of engagement described in this request for proposal. These engagements should be ranked on the basis of project size. The Vendor will indicate the scope of work, date, engagement partners, total hours, and the name and telephone number of the principal client contact.
- 7. CUSTOMER SERVICE TO LODIUSD COMMITMENT Describe how the Vendor will provide service and fulfill the requirements and expectations of the District. Provide a description of how services will be performed by Vendor. Vendors are encouraged to provide additional information or description of resources the Vendor feels is pertinent to the RFP. This section should include letters of reference or testimonials. Ongoing commitment to providing outstanding customer service, professional development/education of staff and the number and type of employees must be indicated.

#### 8. Pricing Summary

- a. A completed Pricing Summary Schedule is required.
- b. Provide a summary of all cost elements in the format provided.
- c. A completed Tax Schedule is required.
  - i. Vendor must include a tax estimate on all taxable items proposed in the turnkey system.
  - ii. Taxes must include all local (City/County), State and any regional transportation tax if applicable.
- d. A completed Surcharge and Fee Schedule is required.
- e. Pricing, Tax, Surcharge and Fee Schedule summary is referred to as ATTACHMENT 1
- f. Pricing should be identified by site location. The district may award all sites to one vendor or between multiple vendors.
- g. Responses should be a minimum contract length of 3 years, with 2 1-year optional extensions, for a possible total contract length of 5 years.

#### 9. Vendor Proposal/Offer Form

- a. A completed Vendor Proposal/Offer Form is required.
- b. Vendor Proposal/Offer Form which is referred to as ATTACHMENT 2

#### **10.** Non-Collusion Declaration Form

a. A completed Non-Collusion Declaration Form is required. Non-Collusion Declaration Form which is referred to as ATTACHMENT 3

# **ATTACHMENT 1 – PRICING SUMMARY**

ONE-TIME/IN	NSTALL FEE SCHEDULE	Amount
	SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE	Amount
	RGES AND FEES SCHEDULE	Amount
State Taxes and Surcharges:		
City Taxes and Surcharges:		
Vendor Specific Surcharges:		
Regulatory Fees		
Sub Total		
Total		

# **ATTACHMENT 2**

#### VENDOR PROPOSAL/OFFER FORM

LODI UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 1305 E. Vine Street, Lodi, Ca 95240

# Wide Area Network – WAN (No. LodiUSD-2019-82)

Vendor Name:		
Vendor Address:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contractor License Number:		

#### PLEASE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING

To be signed by authorized corporate officer or partner or individual submitting proposal. Examples to be used under "Title of person signing proposal" (below):

- 1. An individual using a Vendor name, sign: "John Doe doing business as Blank Company"
- 2. An individual doing business under his own name, sign: your name only. A co-partnership, sign: "John Doe and Richard Roe, co-partners doing business as Blank Company, by John Doe, co-partner"
- 3. A corporation, sign: "Blank Company, by John Doe, secretary" (or other title)

TYPE OF BUSINESS:

- □ Corporation
- □ Co-Partnership
- □ Individual Using Own Name
- Individual Using Vendor Name
- □ Minority or Female Owned

Signature of Vendor

Title of Person Signing Proposal

Signature of Vendor

Title of Person Signing Proposal

Date

# **ATTACHMENT 3**

#### NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION TO BE EXECUTED BY VENDOR AND SUBMITTED WITH BID/PROPOSAL

The undersigned declares:

I am

(Insert "sole Owner", "Partner", "President", "Secretary", or other proper title)

of\_

(Insert name of Vendor)

The party making the foregoing bid/proposal submitted herewith to Lodi Unified School District declares: That all statements of fact in such bid/proposal are true;

That such bid/proposal was not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization or corporation;

That such bid/proposal is genuine and not collusive or sham;

That said Vendor has not, directly or indirectly by agreement, had communication or conference with anyone, attempted to induce action prejudicial to the interest of LodiUSD, or of any other Vendor or anyone else interested in the proposed contract;

#### and further

That prior to the public opening and reading of bids/proposals, said Vendor:

- a. Did not directly or indirectly, induce or solicit anyone else to submit a false or sham bid/proposal;
- b. Did not directly or indirectly, collude, conspire, connive or agree with anyone else that said Vendor or anyone else would submit a false or sham bid/proposal, or that anyone should refrain from bidding or withdraw his or her bid/proposal;
- c. Did not, in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to raise or fix the bid/proposal price of said Vendor or of anyone else, or to raise or fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid/proposal price, or of that of anyone else;
- d. Did not, directly or indirectly, submit his or her bid/proposal price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulge information or data relative thereto, to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent, or to any individual or group of individuals thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, except LodiUSD, and has not paid, and will not pay, any person or entity for such purpose or to any person or persons who have a partnership or other financial interest with said Vendor in his or her business.

Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a Vendor that is a corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents that he or she has full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the Vendor.

I certify under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of California that the above information is correct.

By:	Title:	Date:
Position of the person taking	affidavit shall be certified according to law.	
Ву:	Title:	Date:
Position of the person taking	affidavit shall be certified according to law	